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THE ENERGY GROUP 
TROMS KRAFT

we achieve this by producing energy at ten hydro-
electric power plants and one wind farm, distributing 
it through a power grid of more than 10,000 km 
of cables, and through power trading where we 
purchase power and sell it on to our customers. In this 
way, we operate along the entire value chain in the 
power industry, which gives us broad competence 
and room to manoeuvre in the market so, in addition 
to performing our mission 365 days a year, we can 
develop the company and increase value for our 
shareholders. 

In 2019, troms kraft produksjon produced 1,038 
GWh of power at our windfarm and hydroelectric 
power plants, corresponding to the power consump-
tion of 52,000 households. In addition to our own 
power generation, the Group also has a share in 
Nordkraft (5.33%) and Ymber AS (16.67%), where 
our proportion of the power generation amounted to 
45 and 44 GWh in 2019 respectively.

troms kraft nett has a licence as a Distribution System 
Operator (DSO) for distribution activities in 12 
municipalities in Troms region (Northern Norway), 
and in 2019 transported 3,156 GWh electricity to 
78,500 customers, an increase of 2,300 customers 
from 2018. During the period, the distribution 
company invested NOK 237 million in operating 
assets and, with its 160 employees, is the largest 
enterprise in the group. Troms Kraft Nett also conducts 
considerable R&D activities, and manages the project 
”Smart Senja”, which is a broad-based development 
project aiming to create tomorrow’s solutions for a 
smart utilisation of the power grid.

Troms Kraft sells electricity in Norway, Sweden 
and Finland through our wholly owned subsidiaries 
ishavskraft and switch nordic green ab. In Norway, 
Ishavskraft is strongly positioned in the north but 
also has a significant portfolio among public sector 

(Amounts in NOK thousands) 2019 2018

From Income statement

Operating income 5 019 736 4 862 774

EBITDA 721 193 578 750

Operating profit 571 798 432 198

Profit before tax 452 270 330 266

From Balance sheet

Equity capital 1 222 011 917 803

Net interest-bearing debt 2 879 142 2 704 124

Equity ratio 21,2 % 15,7 %

GROUP’S PROFIT DEVELOPMENT

Our mission is to secure the population’s, business and 
industry’s access to electric power.

activities and major corporate customers across the 
entire country. The operations in Sweden and Finland 
are run from offices in Stockholm and Vasa and focus 
mostly on sales in the private market.

The parent company troms kraft as has 10 employ-
ees and is run from our head office in Evjenvegen 
in Tromsdalen. In addition to performing corporate 
governance of our own company, the parent com-
pany is also responsible for safeguarding ownership 
interests in various other energy-related business 
enterprises, the most significant of which is 49% stake 
in Frost Kraftentreprenør AS.

troms holding as, of which Troms og Finnmark County 
Council is the majority shareholder, owns 60% of 
the shares in Troms Kraft AS. The remaining 40% is 
owned by Tromsø municipality. 

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had a total of 
approximately 300 employees.
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RECORD PROFIT 
FOR TROMS KRAFT

LETTER FROM THE CEO

for the first time in nine years, Troms Kraft can pay 
a dividend to our owners in addition to repaying 
subordinated loans. This is an important milestone for 
everyone involved in the operation of our company. 
This means that, in addition to ensuring the power 
supply to our customers, we have succeeded in the 
commercial operation of the company. The accounts 
show that there is a significant value in Troms Kraft. 
Like all other owners, our owners Tromsø municipality 
and Troms Holding have a well-founded expectation 
of a return on their investment. Delivering on this has 
been a clearly expressed goal for the company – and 
now we have achieved that.

It is extremely pleasing to conclude that there are no 
special circumstances that underlie the good result in 
2019. However, we cannot downplay the fact that 
the power prices were predominantly good through 
2019. Nevertheless, the result can mainly be attrib-
uted to good operations in all the company’s main 
business segments: power generation, distribution and 
electricity sales.

We have operated our ten hydroelectric power plants 
and one wind farm without unnecessary shutdowns of 
significance throughout the year. We have maintained 
our electric power grid with a minimum of discon-
nection and with an extremely high level of efficiency 
throughout the distribution company. For the first time 
in our history, the sale of electricity, represented by 
our wholly owned subsidiaries Ishavskraft and Nordic 
Green Energy, accounts for the largest share of profits 
in the Group.

We have achieved this through well-established prin-
ciples for good operations management. simplify, im-
prove and renew have been keywords in our strategy 
for several years. Knowledgeable and well-informed 
businesspeople know that good operations never go 
out of fashion. We clearly have many such people at 
Troms Kraft, whom I would like to take this opportunity 
to thank for their efforts. This is a true team victory.

At the same time, we are entering a new era for the 
power companies: Norway is intensifying electrifica-
tion of society. This means that new technology must 
be developed and phased in, power generation must 
be increased, the power grids must be upgraded and 
utilised in a much smarter way than today, and the 
companies selling electricity must incorporate new 
products for the electricity customers. We must im-
prove our communication with the community because 
we cannot do this alone; this is our responsibility to 
the community.

we look forward to leading the way to a fully electric 
and renewable Northern Norway and to cooperating 
with other actors in the north who are working to 
achieve the same goal. Our guiding principle in 
this prosess is continued good operations; we need 
to renew while simplifying and improving what we 
have.

And not least: to continuing delivering value to 
our owners.

Inge K. Hansen Kristin Bjella Bjarne Borgersen Mai-Lill Ibsen Alf Eirik Røkenes Anita Foshaug John Lindrupsen 
Styreleder Nestleder Styremedlem Styremedlem Styremedlem Ansattevalgt Ansattevalgt 

Semming Semmingsen
Daglig leder og konsernsjef

styremedlem styremedlem

Semming Semmingsen  
Chief Executive Officer

– NOK 100 million back to our owners
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THE GROUP’S OPERATIONS

The Troms Kraft Group (the Group) is a 
vertically integrated energy group, with its 
head office in Tromsø. The Group gener-
ates power in seven municipalities and 
has distribution activities in 12 municipal-
ities in Troms (as at 1 January 2020), as 
well as retail sale of electricity in Norway, 
Sweden and Finland.

The parent company Troms Kraft AS is 
owned by Troms Holding AS (60%) and 
Tromsø municipality (40%). Troms Holding 
AS was established in 2019 and is 
owned by Troms og Finnmark County 
Council (65%) and 21 municipalities in 
Troms (including Tromsø), each with a 
1.67% shareholding.

In 2019, the Group had the following 
business segments:

 ❚ Generation of renewable energy
 ❚ Distribution of power
 ❚ Retail sale of electricity in Norway, 

Sweden and Finland
In addition to the parent company, Troms 
Kraft AS, the Group consisted in 2019 of 
the following companies:

 ❚ Troms Kraft Produksjon AS
 ❚ Troms Kraft Nett AS
 ❚ Troms Kraft Strøm AS
 ❚ Switch Nordic Green AB (brand name 

Nordic Green Energy)
 ❚ Ishavskraft AS

THE POWER MARKET

The high power prices in 2018 continued 
in 2019. The year started with low reser-
voir levels, and bitterly cold temperatures 
in the winter led to a price in January of 
over 50 øre/kWh in all the Norwegian 
price areas. However, the cold snap did 
not last long; a wetter and milder late 
winter led to a strengthening of the hy  dro-
logical balance. The hydrological balance 
was between -10 and +5 TWh throughout 
the year, and Norway had net imports of 
power for the first time since 2010. 

The general trend was that the coal and 
gas markets fell in 2019. This contributed 
to the spot price quoted in the Tromsø 
zone (NO4) falling about NOK 4 øre/
kWh below the 2018 level, from NOK 
42.0 øre/kWh to 37.7 øre/kWh. This 
also applied to the system price, which fell 
from 42.3 øre/kWh to NOK 38.4 øre/
kWh. Several large wind farms entered 
operation in 2019. The total annual 
power generation from wind power 
in Norway was 5.5 TWh, which was 
almost double the previous year. This led 
to greater price fluctuations in the market 
than previously and, with more projects 
are under development, this trend is 
expected to continue in the future.

The price of electricity certificates fell to 
new low levels in 2019 as a result of 
larger offers of certificates in the market.

ANALYSIS OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The Group’s operating income increased 
by 3.3% from 2018 to 2019 to NOK 
5,020 million. All the business segments 
had growth in the operating incomes in 
2019. It was a normal hydrological year 
for power generation, with a total annual 
power generation of 1,038 GWh, of 
which 133 GWh was wind power from 
Fakken (compared to 955 GWh overall 
last year). The hydroelectric power genera-
tion was 42 GWh below the 10-year 
mean (compared to minus 111 GWh last 
year). Reservoirs storage increased by 59 
GWh during the year (while it reduced 
by 47 GWh in 2018). The increase in 
power generation compared to 2018 
was 83 GWh (9%), which equated to a 
revenue increase of 8%.

Revenues from distribution activities are 
largely determined by the allowed revenue 
allocated by the Norwegian Water 
Resources and Energy Directorate (NVE). 
In 2019, Troms Kraft Nett was allocated 
an allowed revenue of NOK 519 million, 
compared to NOK 508 million in 2018. 

THE TROMS KRAFT GROUP

1 øre = NOK 0.01
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The cost of energy not supplied (KILE) was 
NOK 24 million in 2019, which is within 
the normal scope.

The Group’s total income from power sales 
in 2019 were just in excess of power 
generation and distribution activities.

Consequently, the Group has a good 
balance in earnings between the three 
business segments. In Norway, Ishavskraft 
remains the fourth largest power sales 
company in terms of turnover. The compa-
ny has a particularly strong market position 
in Northern Norway as a supplier of 
renewable energy. It is also a significant 
operator nationally, especially in the 
corporate and municipal markets.

In Sweden and Finland, Switch Nordic 
Green has developed a profitable 
business based on the sale of renewable 
energy. The focus is on private customers 
and sales margins through value-added 
services. Overall, the company has more 
than 140,000 customers in the Swedish 
and Finnish markets.

The Group’s operating profit for 2019 
was NOK 140 million higher than in 
2018. All the Group’s business segments 
delivered better results than in the previous 
year. The largest increase is in retail 
activities with a combined operating profit 
of NOK 62 million higher than in 2018.

The Group’s annual profit was historically 
high at NOK 319 million, an increase 
of NOK 125 million from 2018. Good 
operations in all business segments led to 
a result that is considered very satisfactory.

In 2019, investments in tangible fixed 
assets in the Group totalled NOK 273 
million, of which NOK 237 million con-
stituted investments in the power grid. The 
level of investment is expected to remain 
high in the years ahead.

There was a positive cash flow from 
operating activities of NOK 105 million. 
There were major changes in accrual 
accounting throughout the year, especially 
in connection with the retail business. 
Repayment of interest-bearing debt during 
the year totalled NOK 50 million.

As at 31 December 2019, the equity ratio 
of the parent company, Troms Kraft AS, 
was 25.5%. The equivalent figure as at 
31 December 2018 was 21.0% (25.3% 
before the retroactive change in principle 
of pension accounting). For the Group, 

the corresponding figures were 21.2% 
and 15.7% (20.0% before retroactive 
change in principle of accounting for 
pension). In 2019, a change in principle 
of accounting for pension was introduced, 
so that pension liabilities are entered in 
accordance with IAS 19, with a negative 
impact on equity of NOK 202 million, 
which equates to 3.5 percentage points 
of equity. The company’s underlying value 
indicates that the value adjusted equity is 
significantly higher. The financial situation 
is considered satisfactory.

INDUSTRY-SPECIFIC UNCERTAINTIES
The result from the retail business is 
influ enced by three key factors: fluctu-
ations in power prices, exchange rate 
developments and volume uncertainty. 
These risks associated with power trading 
are reduced through adopted hedging 
strategies with associated frameworks 
and guidelines that are adapted to the 
operations of the retail companies. The 
volume uncertainty is monitored and 
managed through continuous development 
of consumption forecasts for customer 
segments.

The power generation business has 
strategies for achieving the best possible 
financial results from the available water 
and wind resources. Close monitoring 
of availability per power plant, good 
auditing and maintenance programmes, 
monitoring of inflow and reservoir levels 
and price development analyses are 
among the measures for achieving the 
goals of this strategy. Price hedging of 
future power generation can also be used 
to mitigate risk against fluctuations in 
power prices.

For the DSO, the development of allowed 
revenue is key as 60% of the income is 
based on the costs in the industry and 
the relative efficiency of the DSO. The 
calculation model NVE uses is complex 
and leads to the allowed revenue varying 
over time. Seen over several years, consid-
ering the anticipated major investments 
that will occur in the power grid in Troms 
Kraft Nett AS and the industry in general, 
it is expected that an underlying trend 
will result in an increase in the allowed 
revenue.

FINANCIAL RISK
Interest rate risk associated with the Group’s 
debt portfolio is managed by uti  lising 

interest rate swaps to provide greater pre-
dictability regarding the finance expenses.

The Group’s liquidity situation was good 
in 2019. As at 31 December 2019, the 
Group had a committed revolving working 
capital facility totalling NOK 500 million, 
which was undrawn at the end of the year.

GOING CONCERN ASSUMPTION
The Group is in a satisfactory financial 
and operational situation. The Board of 
Directors and Managing Director confirm 
that the going concern assumption is 
justified.

ALLOCATION OF PROFIT AND DIVIDEND
A total of NOK 270 million has been 
transferred to equity, from the parent 
company’s net result after tax amounting 
to NOK 320 million as at 31.12.2019. 
Owing to a continued major future invest-
ment requirement in the Group, the Board 
of Directors has recommended a total 
dividend of NOK 50 million for the 2019 
financial year. Furthermore, repayment of 
the final part of subordinated loan capital 
of NOK 52.5 million, plus interest, to the 
owners is planned in 2020.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Good corporate governance is intended 
to ensure that strategies are implemented 
and goals are achieved. Consequently, it 
is a prerequisite for stable value creation 
over time. The Group has worked for 
several years to improve its governance 
model. A key aspect of this is clarifying 
the division of responsibilities between 
the owner, the Board of Directors and 
the management, as well as clarification 
of the of the parent company’s role in 
the Group. The choice of governance 
model is based on the desire for efficient 
and sound decisions adapted to suit the 
complexity and competitive situation of the 
various companies. The role and function 
of the parent company is now concentrat-
ed on the ownership of subsidiaries and, 
to a limited extent, on providing services 
to other companies in the Group.

A set of governing documents has been 
created that forms the framework of the 
governance model, including ethical 
guidelines, rules of procedure for the 
Board of Directors, instructions and 
authorisations for the general managers, 
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frameworks and principles for governance 
and control, as well as group policies that 
provide specific guidelines for managing 
of important areas.

GOVERNING BODIES
The Group’s owners exercise their control 
through the general meeting. The owner-
ship strategy was last revised and adopt-
ed by the owners, Tromsø municipality 
and Troms County Council, in 2016. 

The key duties of the corporate assembly 
are to elect a Board of Directors, and to 
have the right to decide or be consulted 
in specified matters of major significance. 
One-third (5 out of 15) of the members are 
elected by and from among the em ploy ees. 
The Group’s Board of Direc tors consists of 
7 members, two of whom are elected by 
and from among the employees.

Rules of procedure have been drawn up 
by and for the Group’s Board of Directors. 
The purpose of this is to provide more 
detailed guidelines pertaining to the Board 
of Directors’ duties and rules of procedure 
within the scopes of the Limited Liability 
Companies Act and the company’s articles 
of association.

The Group’s Board of Directors has 
ap poin ted an audit committee, which is a 
subcommittee intended as a preparatory 
and advisory body. Its purpose is to under-
take more thorough assessments of matters 
designated by the Board of Directors, 
mostly related to financial reporting and 
auditing.

The CEO is responsible for the day-to-
day management of the company Troms 
Kraft AS, as well as leading the Group’s 
combined operations in accordance with 
an overarching strategy for achieving the 
Group’s objectives. The Group’s Board of 
Directors adopts instructions and authorisa-
tion provisions for the CEO.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR
The external auditor is elected by the 
general meeting. The auditor’s reports are 
presented to the Group’s management 
and the Board of Directors and to the 
management and the Board of Directors 
of the subsidiaries. The auditor attends 
the Audit Committee meetings. Moreover, 
the auditor holds an annual meeting with 
the Group’s Board of Directors without the 
CEO or administration being present.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND 
INTERNAL CONTROL
The Group’s Board of Directors has 
adopted the overarching guidelines for 
the Group’s corporate governance and 
management. The Group strategy sets 
out goals, objectives and choices for 
the Group and its business sectors. The 
subsidiaries operationalize the Group’s 
strategy for their respective businesses 
and establish appropriate follow-up and 
reporting on attainment of their goals. 
Each company has a responsibility to 
id entify and monitor risks that threaten 
these goals. Consequently, the operational 
risk management forms an integral part 
of the business activities and is regularly 
discussed at the management meetings of 
the companies.

The work concerning risk management 
and internal control has high priority in 
the Group and is followed up regularly 
by the boards of both the Group and 
its subsidiaries. These processes, along 
with governing documents, constitute the 
basis for the overall risk management. 
Digital support tools (e.g. quality and 
man agement systems) ensure structured 
documentation of risk analysis and internal 
control.

The Group’s business segments are 
sub ject to comprehensive general and 
industry-specific laws, regulations and 
other public regulations. Ensuring compli-
ance with these is a continuous process in 
the Group.

The Group’s ethical guidelines outline 
procedures for notifying censurable 
conditions.

HSE, COMPETENCE BUILDING 
AND RECRUITMENT

HEALTH, SAFETY AND THE ENVIRONMENT
Determined efforts have been made to 
get sickness absence down to a low 
level. Various measures to reduce sickness 
absence were still being implemented 
in 2019, including adaptation of the 
workplace, safety inspection rounds, physi-
otherapy provision, collaboration with the 
occupational health service and through 
the work of the subsidiaries’ working 
environment committees. Sickness absence 
has been at the same level in 2019 as in 

2018, i.e. 3.6%. There has been major 
focus on this area, which will continue.

Working environment surveys were 
also conducted among our employees 
in 2019. This provides information on 
employee satisfaction, job satisfaction, 
motivation and commitment, and contrib-
utes to identifying necessary measures. 
The companies follow up the survey by 
implementing improvement measures at the 
company and unit level. The results of the 
survey in 2019 are virtually unchanged 
from the previous year and show there is 
a high employee satisfaction rate at the 
companies.

The distribution and power generation 
activities involve activity that may pose a 
risk to life and health. However, the goal 
is that our activity must not cause injuries 
and HSE work is a daily occurrence at 
both subsidiaries. Safety has and must 
have high focus. Reporting on selected 
key HSE figures occurs regularly at all 
board meetings in the Group companies, 
at all Group management meetings and 
meetings at the subsidiaries. 

The DSO had eight occupational acci-
dents causing in injury in 2019, resulting 
in 29 days of absence. In comparison, in 
2018 there were two injuries that did not 
result in absence. Consequently, various 
measures have been implemented at 
Troms Kraft Nett. No injuries were report-
ed at the power generation company in 
2019. The systematic work in this area 
will continue in the Group.

EXTERNAL ENVIRONMENT
The Group wants to prevent and limit 
the negative environmental impact of our 
operations. Consequently, we always 
strive to act cautiously during planning, 
construction and operation, and to take 
reasonable steps to avoid damaging the 
natural diversity. The same applies to 
avoiding damage and inconvenience to 
private and public interests.

During the planning phase, the Group 
safeguards this by ensuring that the 
impact on natural diversity is adequately 
investigated and that the action plans are 
presented to NVE (the Norwegian Water 
Resources and Energy Directorate), the 
host municipality, the County Governor, 
landowners and other affected parties 
before implementing the initiative. The 
project plans are corrected to reduce 
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the environmental footprint, to the extent 
appropriate without disproportionate 
expense or inconvenience. In cases where 
the plans cannot be corrected, the need 
for mitigation measures is assessed. A lot 
of research on environmental impacts and 
mitigating measures takes place, and the 
Group strives to keep updated with such 
knowledge to ensure that projects can be 
presented with balanced and considered 
environmental impacts.

We are working to ensure that the 
competence and culture exists in all parts 
of the organisation to take care of the 
external environment, and that environmen-
tal requirements are communicated to our 
partners and suppliers. Any nonconformi-
ties affecting the external environment are 
reported and handled in the organisation 
to avoid recurring nonconformities.

Through wind and hydro power gener-
ation, power distribution and electricity 
retailing, the Group is a contributor to the 
green shift. All the power plants owned 
by the Group are based on renewable 
energy, that is to say ten hydroelectric 
power plants and one wind farm. The 
utilisation of renewable energy entails that 
natural resources are utilised in and near 
wilderness areas. This requires that the 
power plants manoeuver as carefully as 
necessary to safeguard the watercourse 
environment. There is also a duty to utilise 
the power resource in a way that ensures 
a satisfactory quality of supply in the 
power system.

Underground cables are considered for 
the power grid where appropriate. Alter-
natively, a camouflaging colour scheme of 
overhead lines should be sought to reduce 
the visual effects of new power lines. 
When constructing new power lines or 
rehabilitating old lines, the precautionary 
principle is followed to ensure exposure to 
electromagnetic fields is minimised to the 
extent possible, and that lines are de-
signed to reduce the risk of birds colliding 
with them.

All the Group’s installations fulfil the 
requirements that can reasonably be made 
concerning safeguarding against hazards 
to people, the environment and property. 

COMPETENCE BUILDING AND RECRUITMENT
The expertise of the Group’s employees is 
a prerequisite for success. This expertise 
must be maintained and renewed in 
keeping with business development and 
changes in framework conditions. Efforts 
are being made to facilitate the employ-
ees maintaining, renewing and upgrading 
their professional competence.

Several of our companies recruit through 
apprenticeships. A total of 14 apprentices 
were taken on at Troms Kraft in 2019.

EQUALITY AND 
NON-DISCRIMINATION

The energy industry has traditionally 
been male dominated, especially the 
power generation and distribution 
sectors. However, the retail sector has a 
significantly higher proportion of women 
(45% at Ishavskraft, including 33% of the 
managers). As at 31 December 2019, 
25% of the Group’s employees were 
women, which is the same level as the 
previous year. The ambition over time is to 
contribute to a more balanced proportion 
of men and women in the Group’s busi-
ness segments, including in management 
positions. The Board of Directors of the 
parent company consists of three women 
and four men.

The Group shall be an inclusive 
workplace and provide equal opportu-
nities for everyone. Discrimination shall 
not occur.

 A WORD ABOUT THE GROUP’S 
OUTLOOK IN 2020

After high power prices in 2018 and 
2019, the market entered 2020 with 
sharply falling prices. A combination of 
high temperatures in Norway, Finland 
and Sweden, reservoirs with high levels, 
increased supply capacity from wind pow-
er and falling prices for power, coal and 
CO2 quotas have caused the low power 
prices. Earnings from power generation 
business will weaken significantly in 2020 
as a result of the price changes. However, 
history shows that power prices fluc   tuate, 

which is a natural business risk for this 
type of business. The price changes are 
not expected to affect the distribution and 
retail segments to the extent.

The Corona pandemic has a significant 
impact on Troms Kraft. The Group 
has implemented its emergency man-
agement plan to ensure power supply 
(power generation and distribution) and 
implemented measures to fulfil critical 
functions. Moreover, the Group is working 
on measures to minimize the negative 
financial consequences of an economic 
downturn in Norway as a result of Corona 
pandemic, including the increased credit 
risk this may entail.

The Group is partially exposed to foreign 
currency (EUR) and is affected by volatility 
in the financial markets. Exposure to the 
foreign exchange market is not part of 
the Group’s core business activity and 
consequently the strategy for currency 
is to minimize this type of risk. Volatility 
in the financial markets, including the 
power market, may result in demands for 
increased security and have an adverse 
effect on liquidity in 2020.

The power industry remains in a period 
of major change. Implementation of Elhub 
and advanced metering systems (AMS) 
and a general trend towards more electrifi-
cation of society offers new opportunities. 
Troms Kraft Nett successfully implemented 
AMS in 2019 and is working continuously 
in collaboration with the authorities and 
customers to optimize energy consumption 
and power effect. Increased electricity 
consumption also means that many areas 
are now heavily burdened. To protect 
security of supply, planned maintenance, 
reinvestment, new investment and the 
use of new technology to flatten out 
power peaks are important measures 
for the DSO. If this is implemented in an 
economically efficient manner, the revenue 
regulation model that applies for distribu-
tion companies shall provide a satisfactory 
return in the years to come.

All the business segments delivered record 
profits in 2019. Efforts to increase the 
efficiency of the business activities shall 
continue. Strategic partnerships, alliances 
and consolidations are among measures 
that shall further increase competitiveness 
in the market and contribute to increased 
profitability and better returns for our 
owners.
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TROMSØ, 24 MARCH 2020

From left: Tore Nilsen, Kristin Bjella, Alf Eirik Røkenes, Kathrine Tveiterås, Semming Semmingsen, Anita Foshaug, 
Bjarne Borgersen, Laurence Frémion-Pitras and Inge K. Hansen. PHOTO: MARIUS FISKUM
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Semming Semmingsen
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Kathrine Tveiterås
Board member
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INCOME STATEMENT
TROMS KRAFT AS GROUP

2018 2019 Amounts in NOK thousands Note 2019 2018

OPERATING INCOME AND EXPENSES

0 0 Electricity sales revenue 2, 3, 27 4 298 694 4 158 298

0 0 Tariffs revenue 2, 3 657 826 631 208

27 562 33 560 Other operating income 2, 3, 27 63 216 73 268

Internal operating income

27 562 33 560 Total operating income 5 019 736 4 862 774

0 0 Capitalised investment works -57 509 -60 599

-13 85 Purchases of goods and energy 2, 4, 27 3 815 928 3 789 042

20 849 23 995 Payroll expenses 2, 6, 7 258 687 254 115

3 558 3 583 Ordinary depreciation 2, 12 149 396 146 553

40 438 13 737 Other operating expenses 2, 6, 27 281 438 301 466

64 832 41 400 Total operating expenses 4 447 938 4 430 577

-37 270 -7 840 OPERATING PROFIT 571 798 432 198

FINANCIAL INCOME AND EXPENSES

288 154 369 456 Share of profit from subsidiaries 13 0 0

873 1 047 Share of profit from associate companies 14 1 047 873

34 428 72 883 Interest income from group companies 27 0 0

33 132 6 467 Other financial income 29 509 50 691

8 223 Net gains and losses from market-based current assets 223 8

-4 851 -133 Impairment of fixed financial assets -133 -4 851

-134 439 -139 252 Other financial expenses -150 175 -148 652

217 305 310 692 Net financial items -119 528 -101 932

180 035 302 852 Profit before tax 452 270 330 266

 14 891  17 227 Tax 11  -133 047  -136 197 

194 926 320 080 NET PROFIT AFTER TAX 319 223 194 068



BALANCE SHEET
TROMS KRAFT AS GROUP

31.12.2018 31.12.2019 Amounts in NOK thousands Note 31.12.2019 31.12.2018

ASSETS

FIXED ASSETS

Intangible assets

196 887 114 980 Deferred tax assets 11 77 472 168 102

0 0 Goodwill 12 122 948 134 126

0 0 Other intangible assets 12 12 327 12 925

196 887 114 980 Other intangible assets 212 748 315 154

106 414 105 106 Property, plants and equipment 12 3 641 980 3 507 909

Financial fixed assets  

2 300 069 2 493 602 Investments in subsidiaries 8, 13 0 0

51 584 52 041 Investments in associate companies 8, 14 52 272 51 815

203 184 203 498 Investments in other companies 15 217 089 215 981

1 961 514 1 956 713 Long-term receivables and investments 16, 26 15 385 62 199

4 516 351 4 705 854 Total financial fixed assets 284 746 329 995

4 819 651 4 925 940 Total fixed assets 4 139 473 4 153 058

CURRENT ASSETS

0 0 Inventory 3 091 4 066

48 23 Trade receivables 10 336 224 328 308

255 573 440 417 Group receivables 26 0 0

0 316 Short-term receivables 24 587 606 654 313

893 1 117 Short-term financial investments 25 383 723 135 567

1 633 29 Cash and cash equivalents 18 321 713 557 228

258 148 441 902 Total current assets 1 632 357 1 679 483

5 077 799 5 367 842 TOTAL ASSETS 5 771 830 5 832 541

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

EQUITY

Paid-up equity

500 000 500 000 Share capital 19, 20 500 000 500 000

73 954 73 954 Share premium 19 73 954 73 954

573 954 573 954 Total paid-up equity 573 954 573 954

491 388 796 460 Other equity 19 648 057 343 848

1 065 343 1 370 414 TOTAL EQUITY 1 222 011 917 803

LIABILITIES

PROVISIONS FOR LIABILITIES

146 730 125 748 Pension obligations 7 206 279 268 624

0 0 Deferred tax 11 17 331 15 142

4 142 1 501 Other provisions for liabilities 22 3 041 9 405

150 872 127 249 Total provisions for liabilities 226 651 293 171

Other long-term liabilities

110 085 57 332 Subordinated loans 57 332 110 085

3 200 000 3 200 000 Long-term liabilities 21 3 211 609 3 211 565

3 310 085 3 257 332 Total other long-term liabilities 3 268 941 3 321 651

Short-term liabilities   

2 111 1 392 Trade payable 186 073 180 623

0 0 Tax payable 11 70 579 92 764

1 231 1 284 Unpaid government duties (VAT, etc.) 137 682 140 207

0 50 000 Unpaid dividend 50 000 0

0 0 Liabilities to financial institutions 0 60 343

0 0 Accumulated surplus distribution activities 136 948 116 148

548 157 560 171 Other short-term liabilities 9, 23, 26 472 945 709 833

551 499 612 846 Total short-term liabilities 1 054 227 1 299 917

5 077 799 5 367 842 TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 5 771 830 5 832 541

Inge K. Hansen Kristin Bjella Bjarne Borgersen Kathrine Tveiterås Alf Eirik Røkenes Anita Foshaug Tore Nilsen  
Chair of the Board Deputy Chair Board member Board member Board member Employee 

representative
Employee 
representative

 
Semming Semmingsen
CEO

 

Tromsø, 24 March 2020



14

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
TROMS KRAFT AS GROUP

2018 2019 Amounts in NOK thousands 2019 2018

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

180 035 302 852 Profit before tax 452 270 330 266

0 0 Tax paid during the period -73 348 -44 675

0 0 Gain/loss on disposal of business assets -3 156 -3 962

3 558 3 583 Ordinary depreciation 149 395 146 553

4 851 0 Impairment of fixed financial assets 0 4 851

-289 027 -370 503 Share of profit from associates/subsidiaries -1 047 -873

570 590 Dividends received from subsidiaries 590 570

-21 25 Change in trade receivables (-/+) -7 916 29 066

91 -719 Change in trade payables (-/+) 5 450 -15 528

0 0 Change in inventory 975 -3 939

-2 188 -2 106 Difference between pension charged as expense and payments in/out in pension plans -12 640 -3 149

-12 267 4 729 Items classified as investing/financing activities 5 184 -13 586

-7 969 -61 698 Change in other accruals -410 502 256 010

-122 367 -123 248 Net cash flow from operational activities A 105 256 681 604

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

-1 253 805 41 461 Proceeds from long-term receivables/liabilities in group companies 0 0

-929 1 726 Proceeds from sales/purchases of shares, ownership interests and other investments -1 461 -2 174

0 0 Proceeds from disposal/purchases of subsidiaries, net cash disposed/acquired 0 3 754

1 290 000 0 Dividend from subsidiaries

350 350 Proceeds from disposal of property, plants and equipment 4 223 4 765

257 416 0 Proceeds from seller credit 46 538 277 416

-2 436 -2 628 Purchases of property, plants and equipment -273 871 -249 041

290 596 40 909 Net cash flow from investment activities B -224 571 34 720

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

0 0 Change in short-term interest-bearing debt -60 343 -56 324

-250 379 -57 530 New long-term borrowings/repayment of long-term borrowings -57 530 -250 439

0 207 618 Net group contribution 0 0

82 147 -69 353 Changes in cash pool 0 0

-168 232 80 735 Net cash flow from financing activities C -117 873 -306 763

-3 -1 604 Net change in cash and cash equivalents A+B+C -237 187 409 562

0 0 Effect of exchange rates changes on cash and cash equivalents 1 673 -1 198

1 636 1 633 Cash and cash equivalents at start of period 557 228 148 865

1 633 29 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF PERIOD 321 713 557 228
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2019
NOTE 1 ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES

GENERAL

The financial statements have been prepared in 
accordance with the Accounting Act and gener-
ally accepted accounting principles in Norway. 

All amounts in the income statement, balance 
sheet, cash flow statement and notes are in NOK 
thousands, unless otherwise specified.

CONSOLIDATION PRINCIPLES

The consolidated financial statements include 
Troms Kraft AS and companies in which Troms 
Kraft AS has a controlling interest. A controlling 
interest normally exists when the Group holds 
more than 50% of the shares in the company 
and the Group can exercise effective control over 
the company. Intra-group transactions, balances 
and unrealised profits and losses between group 
companies are eliminated. The Group’s share 
of unrealised profits on transactions between 
the Group and its affiliates is also eliminated. 
The same applies to unrealised losses, unless 
transactions indicate an impairment loss on the 
transferred asset. The consolidated financial 
statements have been prepared using uniform 
principles that subsidiaries follow the same 
accounting principles as the parent company. 
The financial statements of the subsidiaries are 
restated when necessary to achieve compliance 
with the Group’s accounting principles.

The acquisition method of accounting is used for 
business mergers. Companies acquired or sold 
during the year are included in the consolidat-
ed financial statements from the time control is 
achieved and until control ceases. Identifiable 
acquired assets and assumed liabilities acquired 
are recognised at fair value at the time of acqui-
sition. Any acquisition cost that exceeds the fair 
value of identifiable net assets is recognised in the 
balance sheet as goodwill. All identifiable assets 
and liabilities are recognised in the balance sheet 
at their respective values at the time of acquisition. 
Excess values and goodwill are amortised in 
the consolidated financial statements over the 
projected economic life.

The balance sheet items of foreign subsidiaries 
are translated at the average exchange rate 
as at the balance sheet date. Any significant 
transactions are translated at the exchange rate 
of the transaction day. Any exchange differences 
are charged to equity and thus do not affect the 
income statement.

Subsidiaries are accounted for in Troms Kraft 
AS’s accounts by the equity method. The share 
of profit/loss is recognised in the income state-
ment and added to the carrying amount of the 
investments. The share of losses is not recognised 
if this means that the carrying amount is negative, 
unless obligations have been entered, payments 

made or guarantees provided for the subsidiary’s 
liabilities.

ASSOCIATES

Associates are entities where the Group has sig-
nificant but not controlling interest. This normally 
implies that the Group has a shareholding of 
20% to 50% of voting share capital. Investments 
in associate include excess value/shortfall in 
market and goodwill identified at the time of 
acquisition, less depreciation and impairment 
losses in later periods. Associates are accounted 
for using the equity method in the consolidated 
and company accounts. The Group’s share of 
profits or losses in associates is recognised in 
the income statement and added to the carrying 
amount of the investments. The Group does not 
recognize a share of loss if the carrying amount 
of the investment is negative, unless the Group 
has made payments on behalf of the associate or 
provided guarantees for the associate’s liabilities.

The Group’s share of the profit/loss of associ-
ates are included in the consolidated financial 
statements using the equity method from the time 
a significant interest is achieved and until such 
interest ceases. This is recognised in the income 
statement under financial items.

INVESTMENTS IN OTHER COMPANIES

Shares and interests in other companies are 
presented using the historical cost method and 
are valued at the lower of cost and market value. 
Dividends are recognised as financial income 
when the distribution is approved.

USE OF ESTIMATES

Preparation of accounts in accordance with the 
Accounting Act requires the use of estimates. 
Moreover, the application of accounting principles 
requires management to exercise discretion. 
Areas containing a high degree of discretionary 
assessments, complexity or assumptions and 
estimates of significance to the financial statements 
are described in the notes.

PRINCIPLES FOR RECOGNITION OF REVENUE

General
Revenue from the sale of goods and services is 
assessed as net realisable value after deduction 
of VAT, returns, discounts and reductions. The 
Group produces and sells energy to the Nordic 
power exchange (Nord Pool) and end users. 
Sales are recorded when the energy is supplied 
to the power exchange or the customer.

Retail activities
The Group has retail sales in Norway, Swe-
den and Finland. Sales are entered based on 
supplied volume at the time of meter readings 
and estimated volumes until the end of the year. 

Estimated revenue is based on the average price. 
The income statement effect between estimated 
and invoiced (or realised) income is recognised 
on final invoicing.

Distribution activities
Electric power is distributed via power grids 
that represent natural monopolies within the 
DSO’s concession area. The Norwegian Water 
Resources and Energy Directorate (NVE) stipulates 
an allowed revenue that represents the revenue 
the DSO can charge for grid rental. This should 
provide a reasonable return on invested capital 
and cover normal operating and maintenance 
costs. The regulated allowed revenue, which is 
stipulated for the entire year, is based on the 
allowed revenue and pass-through costs related 
to the national power grid, property taxes and 
time lag in capital recovery. The allowed revenue 
forms the basis for revenue recognition in the 
DSO. Each year a surplus/shortfall is calculated, 
which is the difference between invoiced tariffs 
and the approved revenues for the year. If the 
actual revenue exceeds the approved revenue 
(surplus), this surplus must be transferred back 
to the customers in full. This occurs through a 
reduction in tariffs. If the actual revenue is lower 
than the allowed revenue (shortfall), this may be 
claimed from the customers through an increase 
in the future tariffs. The shortfall is presented 
in the balance sheet as current assets, while a 
surplus is presented under short-term liabilities.

CLASSIFICATION PRINCIPLES

Current assets and short-term liabilities cover 
items that are due for payment within one year 
of the transaction date, as well as items relating 
to the business cycle. Other posts are classified 
as tangible fixed assets/long-term liabilities. 
However, the first year’s repayment of long-term 
receivables and long-term liabilities is not clas-
sified as current assets and short-term liabilities.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS AND GOODWILL

Goodwill has arisen in connection with the ac-
quisition of a subsidiary. Goodwill is amortised 
over the projected economic life. Expenses for 
R&D Development are included on balance 
sheet if it is considered probable that future 
economic benefits attributable to the assets will 
flow to the company and it has been possible 
to reliably measure the acquisition cost of the 
asset. Otherwise, such expenses are expensed 
as they are incurred. R&D that meets the criteria 
for capitalisation is linear depreciated over its 
economic life.
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PROPERTY, PLANTS AND EQUIPMENT  

– TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

Fixed assets are assessed at the lowest of cost and 
market value. Investment in property, plants and 
equipment are capitalised and linear depreciated 
over the projected economic life of the operating 
asset from the time it enters ordinary activities. 
In the event of changes to the depreciation plan, 
the amount is distributed over the remaining 
depreciation period. Capitalisation of investment 
work in the Group is assessed at production cost.

If it appears the carrying amount of fixed asset 
is higher than the fair value, an impairment test 
is conducted. If the carrying amount is higher 
than the sales value and the recoverable amount 
(present value with continued use/ownership), 
it is written down to the highest of sales value 
and recoverable amount. Previous impairment 
losses, except for reduction of goodwill, are 
reversed if the prerequisites for the impairment 
loss no longer exist.

LEASES

Leases where the landlord bears a significant 
portion of the risk and return related to the own-
ership are classified as operational leases, and 
the rental is expensed over the lease period.

If the significant portion of financial risk and 
control related to the lease object is transferred to 
the tenant, the agreement is classified as financial. 
Assets acquired through financial leasing are 
capitalised and amortised in accordance with 
the projected useful life of the object, and the 
liability is reduced by rental paid after deduction 
of computed interest charges.

MAINTENANCE AND UPGRADES

New installations and reinvestments in compo-
nents that extend the life of the asset or otherwise 
increase the future earning capacity are capital-
ised. Other activities are classified as operation/
maintenance and expensed. The maintenance 
costs are expensed on implementation.

MARKET-BASED SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS

For short-term investments in listed shares, bonds 
and other securities, the market value principle is 
utilised. The value in the balance sheet equates 
to the market value of the investments as at 
31 December. Dividends received, realised 
and unrealised gains/losses are recognised as 
financial items.

INVENTORY

Inventory consists of commodities, spare parts 
and operating equipment, and is classified as 
current assets. The inventory is valued at the 
lowest of cost and market value.

RESERVOIR STOCKS

There is no cost price for water inflow. Reservoir 
stocks are therefore not recognised in the balance 
sheet. Such reserves at year-end will have an 
impact on future income and power generation.

TRADE RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables are recognised in the balance 
sheet after deduction for provisions for expected 
losses. Provision for losses is based on an as-
sessment of the receivables and an additional 
depreciation to cover other foreseeable losses.

OTHER SHORT-TERM RECEIVABLES

Other receivables, both current and non-current 
receivables, are recognised at the lowest of face 
value and fair value. Fair value is the present 
value of expected future payments. However, 
discount rates are not used when discounting is 
immaterial to the financial statements.

Provisions for losses are assessed in the same 
way as for trade receivables.

PENSION OBLIGATIONS

The Group companies mainly cover their pen-
sion obligations via collective pension plans in 
life insurance companies. The Group has both 
defined-contribution pension plans (based on 
yield from contributed capital) and defined-ben-
efit pension plans (whereby benefits are set in 
advance). The net pension cost for the period is 
classified as payroll expenses.

In accordance with the Norwegian accounting 
standard NRS 6, the company has chosen to 
apply the rules concerning measurement and 
recognition of International accounting standard 
IAS 19 Employee Benefits, with the modification 
specified in Section 67C.

Pension obligations are valued at the present 
value of the future pension benefits earned as 
at the balance sheet date. Pension funds are 
valued at fair value.

For companies with defined-benefit plans, the 
pension obligations are valued at the present 
value of future pension benefits earned as at the 
balance sheet date. Pension funds are valued 
at fair value. Pension obligations include both 
secured and unsecured plans. Remeasurements 
are recognised directly against equity.

For defined-contribution plans, the company pays 
contributions to an insurance company, which 
are recognised as payroll expenses. In addition, 
some special arrangements are financed directly 
through operations.

TAXES AND DUTIES

Tax-related expenses consist of tax payable and 
changes in deferred tax liabilities/assets. Deferred 
tax liabilities/assets are calculated based on the 
differences between the book value and tax value 
of assets and liabilities. Deferred tax is calculated 
on the basis of the temporary differences that 
exist between book and tax values, as well as 
tax effect of any losses carried forward at the end 
of the financial year. Net deferred tax assets are 
recognised in the balance sheet if it is assessed 
as probable that they can be utilised.

Deferred tax is calculated using the liability 
method on temporary differences between the 
tax and book values of assets and liabilities, 
and losses carried forward. Assets that were 
transferred during the establishment of Troms Kraft 
AS were valued at fair value (estimated market 
value) regarding the underlying tax positions. 
Consequently, no provision is made for deferred 
tax based on temporary differences between 
the tax value and the fair value at the date of 
incorporation on 1 January 1998.

Differences on that date are reversed over the 
remaining useful life of the assets.

The hydroelectric power generation company, 
which is subject to the special rules for the taxation 
of power companies, is charged ground rent tax, 
natural resource tax and property tax.

The ground rent tax for 2019 represents 37% 
of the net resource rent revenue of each power 
plant above the tax-free allowance and is in 
addition to the ordinary income tax for 2019 of 
22%. Negative ground rent revenues per power 
plant can be pooled with positive resource rent 
revenues from other power plants. Deferred tax is 
calculated for power plants with net tax-increasing 
differences.

The natural resource tax is not affected by profit 
and is calculated based on the individual power 
plant’s average generation over the past seven 
years. The tax rate is 1.3 øre/kWh. Income tax 
can be offset against the natural resource tax 
paid. Any natural resource tax that cannot be fully 
offset against income tax can be carried forward 
and deducted from income tax in subsequent 
years, at an interest rate set by the Ministry of 
Finance.

Property tax constitutes up to 0.7% of the assessed 
property value.

Ground rent tax and natural resource tax are 
recognised as ordinary taxes and property tax 
as operating expenses.

DEBT

Debt, except some provisions for liabilities, is 
recognised in the balance sheet at the nominal 
amount of the debt. 

COMPENSATION AND CONSESSIONARY 

POWER OBLIGATIONS

Annual compensation to landowners is extremely 
limited and is expensed as incurred. No provi-
sions have been made for covering these future 
obligations. The concession power is intended 
to ensure the municipalities with hydroelectric 
power plants sufficient power for general sup-
ply, and at a reasonable price. Obligations to 
supply concession power are not included in the 
balance sheet. The annual obligations amount 
to approx. 84 GWh.

NOTE 1 ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES – CONTINUED
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CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS POWER SALES

Contractual obligations consist of sales contracts 
in the retail market and physical power contracts 
in the wholesale market. In addition, the contract 
portfolio includes financial contracts for hedging 
power sales. Contracts in the retail market are 
entered into at a fixed price or spot price with 
a mark-up. 

POWER PURCHASE

Physical performance obligations are covered 
through the purchase of power on the spot mar-
ket. Performance obligations at fixed prices are 
hedged through financial power contracts with 
Nasdaq Commodities. The currency risk in the 
financial contract is also hedged (see paragraph 
about currency). The realised gain or loss from 
power contracts that hedge purchases for end-us-
ers are classified as power purchase or decrease 
in power purchase the income statement.

ELECTRICITY CERTIFICATES

The cost of supplied volume with an obligation 
for electricity certificates is included in power 
purchase and accrued during the same period 
as associated power sale. Calculated electricity 
certificate obligations less electricity certificate 
inventory is presented as short-term liabilities as 
at the balance sheet date and is valued at the 
future hedged price or market value as at the 
balance sheet date.

POWER GENERATION PORTFOLIO

The portfolio’s power generation volume is 
based on future planned generation based on 
the reservoir levels, expected inflow and price 
development. Financial contracts are used to 
hedge parts of the underlying generation based 
on future planned generation. Losses/gains on 
hedging contracts, calculated as a margin be-
tween contract price and spot price, are recorded 
on realisation.

CURRENCY

Transactions denominated in foreign currency 
are translated using the exchange rate on the 
transaction date. Money items denominated in 
foreign currency are translated into Norwegian 
kroner at the exchange rate on the balance sheet 
date. Exchange rate changes are recognised in 
profit or loss during the accounting period under 
Other financial items.

Through its operations, including participation 
in the Nordic power market, the Troms Kraft 
Group is exposed to exchange risk in several 
currencies. Exposure in the exchange market 
is not part of the Group’s core activity and, as 
such, the strategy is to minimize this form of risk. 
Forward exchange contracts are mostly used to 
hedge future exchange rates. The currency risk the 
Group is exposed in the power market is revealed 
almost immediately via a corresponding foreign 
exchange contract with the bank. Hedge account-
ing is utilised for foreign exchange contracts.

HEDGE ACCOUNTING

Financial instruments that hedge future transac-
tions are not recorded in the accounts. Recording 
of gains and losses related to hedging instru-
ments/contracts is deferred until the hedged 
transaction is recognised in the income statement.

CHANGE IN PRINCIPLE

In 2019, a change in principle of accounting 
for pension was introduced. In accordance with 
the Norwegian accounting standard NRS 6, the 
group has chosen to apply the rules concerning 
measurement and recognition of International 
accounting standard IAS 19 Employee Benefits, 
with the modification specified in Section 67C. 
The principle is applied retrospectively, and the 
comparative figures are changed. See Note 17 
for further information about the effects on the 
comparative figures.

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

The cash flow statement has been prepared using 
the indirect method. Cash and cash equivalents 
include cash, bank deposits and other short-
term liquid investments that can be converted 
into known cash values immediately and at 
insignificant risk, and that mature less than three 
months after their acquisition dates.

NOTE 1 ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES – CONTINUED
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NOTE 2 BUSINESS SEGMENTS

NOTE 3 OPERATING INCOME

Amounts in NOK thousands 
Distribution 

activities
Retail activities 

Sweden and Finland
Retail activities 

Norway Generation business
Parent/other 

companies
Intra-group 
elimination

Total Group after 
elimination

Operating income  699 199  1 558 754  2 437 424  406 394  35 981  -118 016  5 019 736 

Operating expenses  412 217  1 509 674  2 330 430  130 806  38 133  -122 717  4 298 542 

Depreciation/impairment losses  97 712  1 259  10 425  42 294  3 583  -5 877  149 396 

Operating profit  189 270  47 821  96 569  233 294  -5 735  10 578  571 798 

Amounts in NOK thousands 
Distribution 

activities
Retail activities 

Sweden and Finland
Retail activities 

Norway Generation business
Parent/other 

companies
Intra-group 
elimination

Total Group after 
elimination

Operating income  666 606  1 622 376  2 267 697  373 266  89 855  -157 026  4 862 774 

Operating expenses  418 188  1 595 869  2 200 327  116 016  120 014  -166 390  4 284 024 

Depreciation/impairment losses  95 576  1 085  10 639  41 532  3 558  -5 837  146 553 

Operating profit  152 842  25 421  56 731  215 718  -33 717  15 202  432 198 

 ❚ To show the activity in the various business segments, the figures for each business segment contain the intra-group transactions. Intra-group 
eliminations are shown in a separate column.

 ❚ The Group’s tariffs revenue come from Troms Kraft Nett AS’ concession area, which comprises of 15 municipalities in Troms County. Revenues 
from retail turnover come from the subsidiaries Ishavskraft AS and Switch Nordic Green AB. The power generation activities are associated with 
hydroelectric and wind power in Troms County. i Troms Fylke.

GROUP 2019

GROUP 2018

TROMS KRAFT AS GROUP

2018 2019 Amounts in NOK thousands 2019 2018

0 0 Electricity sales 4 289 470 4 148 664

0 0 Concession power sales 9 224 9 634

0 0 Total electricity sales 4 298 694 4 158 298

0 0 Tariffs revenue 657 826 631 208

4 732 9 727 Other operating income 63 216 73 268

22 830 23 833 Other operating income group companies 0 0

27 562 33 560 Total other operating income 63 216 73 268

27 562 33 560 Total operating income 5 019 736 4 862 774

SPECIFICATION OF OPERATING INCOME:
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NOTE 4 POWER PURCHASE, TRANSMISSION AND FEED-IN EXPENSES

NOTE 5 POWER GENERATION AND RESERVOIR STOCKS

 Amounts in NOK thousands 2019 2018

Power purchase 3 768 041 3 752 898

Feed-in costs 36 995 29 494

Purchase of goods and services for resale 10 892 6 649

 Sum 3 815 928 3 789 042

Figures in GWh for hydroelectric power generation 2019 2018

Opening reservoir stocks as at 1 Jan. 322 369

Closing reservoir stocks as at 31 Dec. 381 322

Normal power generation (last 10 years) 947 938

Normal annual variation (last 10 years) 267 285

Power generation this year 905 829

Normal reservoir stocks as at 31 Dec. (last 10 years) 378 374

SPECIFICATION OF POWER PURCHASE, TRANSMISSION AND FEED-IN COSTS IN THE GROUP:

 ❚ Most of the purchase and sales obligations expire within the next three years. 

Reservoir stocks are not recognised as an asset in the Group’s balance sheet. Information related to reservoir stocks at the Group’s 
power plants will be relevant for assessing the proportion of performance obligations that can be covered by the Group’s own power 
generation, as well as estimate future earnings.

 ❚ Hydroelectric power generation requires a concession, as well as the rights to utilise the waterfall rights in question.

 ❚ Except for Lysbotn, the Group’s power plants have concessions without time limits. For Lavka power plant, utilisation of the waterfall rights after 
2041 is still dependent on entering into a new lease.

 ❚ Waterfall rights are either owned or regulated by long-term or perpetual leases. The lease with the shortest remaining lease period is Lysbotn 
power plant, which expires in 2022.

 ❚ Operation of Fakken wind farm is based on a concession lasting until 2037. The power generation in 2019 was 133 GWh..

GROUP

GROUP
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NOTE 6 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS, AUDITOR’S FEE AND NUMBER OF FULL-TIME EQUIVALENTS

TROMS KRAFT AS GROUP

2018 2019  Amounts in NOK thousands 2019 2018

PAYROLL EXPENSES AND OTHER

11 354 12 279 Salaries 205 137 198 169

1 362 1 474 Employer’s National Insurance contributions 15 870 15 649

6 965 8 956 Pension costs, defined-benefit plans 21 981 25 818

0 0 Pension costs, defined-contribution plans 8 017 7 732

1 168 1 286 Other benefits 7 682 6 747

20 849 23 995 Total 258 687 254 115

9 9 Number of full-time equivalents 303 304

AUDITOR’S FEE

230 151 Auditing 1 265 1 536

0 0 Other attesting services 14 41

288 444 Tax consultancy 475 318

429 154 Other services 295 715

947 749 Total 2 049 2 610

REMUNERATION TO CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND BOAD OF DIRECTORS (AMOUNTS IN NOK THOUSANDS)

TROMS KRAFT AS

2019 2018

Remuneration to Group CEO Salary Other benefits Total 2019 Salary Other benefits Total 2018

Semming Semmingsen  2 910  194 3 103 2 802  194 2 995

TROMS KRAFT AS

2019 2018

 Styret (beløp i 1 000 kr) 
Directors’ 

remuneration Other benefits Total 2019
Directors’ 

remuneration Other benefits Total 2017

Inge K. Hansen (Chair) 400 400 400 400

Kristin Bjella (Deputy Chair) 240 240 240 240

Mai-Lill Ibsen (Board member, until 5 April 2019) * 100 25 125 200 50 250

Bjarne Borgersen (Board member) * 200 25 225 200 200

Kathrine Tveiterås (Board member, from 5 April 2019) 100 100

Alf Eirik Røkenes (Board member) * 200 25 225 200 25 225

Anita Foshaug (Employee representative) * 200 25 225 200 25 225

Tore Nilsen (Employee representative) 200 200 200 200

Jostein Jerkø (Deputy member) 20 20

Members of the corporate assembly 110 110 156 156

Combined remuneration 1 770 100 1 870 1 796 100 1 896

 ❚ The Group’s CEO’s pension plan is included in the general public pension plan in the company. With full entitlement, this plan gives an estimated 
pension of 66% including benefits from the National Insurance Scheme, of a basis for calculating entitlement of pension of up to 12G from age 67. In 
addition, the Group CEO has a pension plan for salary above 12G which, assuming full entitlement, gives a benefit of 66% of the basis for calculating 
entitlement of pension. The accrued pension entitlements for the Group CEO in 2019 for constitute NOK 1 684 000.

 ❚ On termination of employment, the Group CEO is entitled to severance pay equivalent to 18 months’ full-time salary, as well as salary during the 
period of notice of six months. Other benefits are not continued beyond the period of notice. This compensation ceases if he starts a new position with 
equivalent or higher salary or receives equivalent income from other duties or his own business. Any severance pay shall be paid monthly in the form 
of a fixed monthly salary from the date of termination of employment. Pay after termination of employment does not provide the basis for holiday pay.

 ❚ The company has entered into an early retirement pension agreement with the Group’s CEO with entitlement to retire when turning 62. In the event of 
retirement, the company is obliged to contribute pension equivalent to 66% of his salary until he turns 67.

* Other benefits to Board members relate to work associated with the audit committee.

 ❚ Loans or guarantees for loans have not been given to members of the management team, Board of Directors or other elected corporate bodies. 
Remuneration or benefits other than those stipulated above have not been paid to members of the Board of Directors
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Assumptions used to calculate obligations: 31.12.2019 31.12.2018

Expected return on pension funds 2,30 % 2,60 %

Discount rate 2,30 % 2,60 %

Annual expected wage growth 2,25 % 2,75 %

Increase in the National Insurance Scheme’s basic amount (G) 2,00 % 2,50 %

Annual indexing of pensions 1,24 % 1,73 %

Employers’ National Insurance contributions factor (interval on average factor cost) 4,7% - 12% 4,7% - 12%

NOTE 7 PENSIONS COSTS AND OBLIGATIONS

Troms Kraft is obliged to have an occupational pension scheme pursuant to the provisions of the Act relating to mandatory occupational pension. The 
company’s pension plans satisfy the statutory requirements. The company’s internal retirement age is 70.

TROMS KRAFT AS GROUP

2018 2019 Amounts in NOK thousands 2019 2018

OBLIGATION RECOGNISED IN THE BALANCE SHEET

282 062 274 334 Present value of the pension obligations 754 988 772 214

-216 173 -227 139 Pension funds -640 125 -599 675

7 907 5 663 Employers’ National Insurance contributions 10 044 14 845

73 796 52 858 Net pension obligations, defined-benefit plans 124 907 187 383

72 934 72 890 Current value of unsecured pension obligations, incl. Employers’ National Insurance contributions 81 372 81 241

146 730 125 748 Net pension obligations in the balanse sheet, incl. Employers’ National Insurance contributions 206 279 268 624

CHANGE IN THE RECOGNISED NET PENSION OBLIGATIONS  

146 306 146 730 Net pension obligations as at 1st January 268 624 261 293

7 144 9 151 Pension costs recognised in the income statement, incl. plan amendment 24 238 27 920

-8 868 -11 257 Paid-up premium -36 879 -30 558

2 148 -18 876 Remeasurements recognised against equity -49 705 9 969

146 730 125 748 Net pension obligation recognised in the balance sheet as at 31st December 206 279 268 624

Pension costs  

2 875 3 393 Present value of accrued pension entitlements for the year 20 779 18 437

8 070 8 948 Interest expenses on pension obligations 21 931 19 565

-4 566 -5 320 Expected return on pension funds -14 389 -12 133

0 1 301 Plan amendment recognised in the income statement -6 322 0

765 828 Employers’ National Insurance contributions 2 239 2 051

-179 -195 Membership deposit -2 257 -2 186

6 965 8 956 Total pension costs defined-benefit plans 21 981 25 734

Pension costs defined-contribution plans 8 017 7 732

6 965 8 956 Total pension costs 29 998 33 465

9 10 Number of employees covered by the defined-benefit plan as at 31st December 191 193
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NOTE 8 MAJOR TRANSACTIONS AND EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

NOTE 9 FINANCIAL DERIVATIVES

NOTE 10 TRADE ACCOUNT RECEIVABLES

There were no major transactions after the reporting period in 2019 or in 2018.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Events after the reporting period related to lower power prices and the outbreak of the Corona virus does not impact on the figures in the financial 
statements for 2019. See the description in the annual report.

Amounts in NOK thousands Fair value as at 31. Dec 2019

Foreign exchange contracts 2020-2024  -3 581 

Financial contracts with Nasdaq OMX 2020-2025  26 954 

TROMS KRAFT AS GROUP

2018 2019  Amounts in NOK thousands 2019 2018

48 23 Trade account receivables  351 482  338 795 

0 0 Provision for bad debts  -15 258  -10 487 

48 23 Total  336 224  328 308 

0 0 Pledged trade account receivables 0 0

The Group has significant business activity related to the sale of electricity to end-users. Financial risk is mainly related to fluctuations in the purchase 
price of power and volume risk. The risk related to fluctuations in the purchase price is managed in accordance with risk policy through entering into 
financial power contracts with Nasdaq Clearing.

The Group is also exposed to financial risk related to fluctuations in the purchase price of electricity certificates. This risk is hedged through entering 
into financial electricity certificate contracts and the purchase of electricity certificates.

Power is traded on the Nasdaq power exchange in euros (EUR), while trading in electricity certificates takes place in Swedish kroner (SEK). The 
Group has retail operations in Norway, Sweden and Finland, and is thus also exposed to exchange rate risk. Risk exposure associated with currency 
is reduced by entering into forward foreign exchange contracts, among other instruments.

Of the financial contracts, NOK 33 million constitutes the accrual of future contracts recorded as short-term liabilities in the balance sheet as of 31st 
December 2019. The stated fair value equates to the market value stated by the company’s banker and/or from its own system.

All financial power contracts, electricity certificate contracts and forward exchange contracts are treated hedging instruments for cash flow related to 
power purchase. Realised and unrealised gains and losses on the financial derivatives are recognised in the income statement in correlation with the 
power purchase that the derivatives hedge. As at 31st December 2019, all unsettled financial power contracts and forward exchange contracts in EUR 
relate to future power purchase. Consequently, unrealised gains/losses are not accounted for. When computing the electricity certificate obligations, 
the cash flow hedge is reflected by contracted forward prices being used as a basis for calculation. 
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NOTE 11 TAXES

TROMS KRAFT AS GROUP

2018 2019 Amounts in NOK thousands 2019 2018

TAX EXPENSE ON INCOME STATEMENT

 -    -   Income tax payable                       11 208  11 582 

 -    -   Ground rent tax payable  59 371  60 949 

 -    -   Natural resource tax  11 208  11 582 

 -    -   Natural resource tax offset against income tax  -11 208  -11 582 

 32 352  81 907 Changes in deferred income tax  89 982  56 824 

 -    -   Changes in deferred ground rent tax  2 190  4 636 

 473  -4 153 Effect of deferred tax recognised against equity  -10 936  2 221 

 -47 752  -94 981 Tax on received group contribution

 36 Provision/changes in tax from previous year  -18 768  -16 

 -14 891  -17 227 Tax on ordinary profit  133 047  136 197 

CALCULATION OF TAX BASE ON ORDINARY RESULT

180 036 302 852 Profit before tax

-289 028 -370 503 Share of profit from subsidiaries/related parties

7 850 8 220 Permanent tax differences

-11 629 -21 779 Change in temporary tax differences 

207 618 431 734 Received group contribution

-94 847 -350 525 Loss carry-forward accrual/utilisation

0 0 Base tax payable, ordinary result

0 0 Income tax on ordinary result payable for the year

BREAKDOWN OF THE PAYABLE TAX ACCOUNTED IN THE BALANCE SHEET 

0 0 Income tax payable 11 208  11 582 

0 0 Ground rent tax payable 59 371  60 949 

0 0 Natural resource tax 11 208  11 582 

0 0 Offset natural resource tax -11 208  -11 582 

0 0 Tax payable not assessed previous years 0  20 233 

0 0 Tax payable in the balance sheet 70 579  92 764 

DEFERRED INCOME TAX

Temporary differences: 

0 0 Current assets -9 397  -6 626 

 -4 868 -3 367 Fixed assets 601 263  625 127 

 -146 730 -125 748 Pension obligations -206 279  -268 622 

 3 459 2 755 Other differences -123 513  -123 321 

0 0 Capital gains and losses 4 384  3 014 

 -746 800 -396 275 Tax loss carry-forward -517 694  -877 463 

 -894 939 -522 636 Total temporary differences -251 236  -647 891 

0 0 Temporary differences that do not provide basis for deferred tax/tax assets -100 911  -116 211 

 -894 939 -522 636 Deferred tax/tax assets base -352 147  -764 102 

 -196 887 -114 980 Net deferred tax (assets (-)/liabilities (+)) connected to ordinary result -77 472  -168 102 

DEFERRED TAX, GROUND RENT 

Temp. differences in fixed assets related to power plants incl. in deferred ground rent tax 173 051 174 052

Carry-forwards negative ground rent -117 696 -121 849

Deferred tax (+)/tax assets (-) base 55 355 52 202

Temporary differences not included in the accounted base/loss not assessed -8 513 -11 279

Net deferred tax/tax assets base 46 842 40 923

Deferred ground rent tax accounted in the balance sheet 17 332 15 142
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NOTE 12 PROPERTY, PLANTS AND EQUIPMENT

GROUP

TROMS KRAFT AS

LEASES  – GROUP

Amounts in NOK thousands
Operating 

moveable assets
Powergrid 

facilities
Production 

facilities
Land and 
buildings

Work in 
progress Total Goodwill

Intangible 
assets Total

Acquisition cost as at 1 Jan.  510 717 3 942 236 1 911 486  224 202  56 312 6 644 953  167 659  17 630 6 830 243

Acquired/net change work in progress  32 364  171 709  22 176  4 208  41 700  272 156   0   850  273 006

Disposals - 1 892   0 -  717 -  350 - 2 959   0 - 2 209 - 5 168

Acquisition cost as at 31 Dec.  541 189 4 113 945 1 932 945  228 060  98 012 6 914 150  167 659  16 271 7 098 081

Accumulated Depreciation/impairment losses - 292 798 -1 922 189 - 945 419 - 111 764   0 -3 272 171 - 44 711 - 3 944 -3 320 826

Carrying amount 31 Dec.  248 391 2 191 756  987 526  116 295  98 012 3 641 980  122 948  12 327 3 777 255

Depreciation   66 674  39 357  4 668   0  136 926  11 177  1 292 149 396

Provisions for decommissioning/restructuring 
during the year   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   0 0

Economic life 3-10 yr 15-70 yr 8-67 yr 50 yr - perpetual   15 yr 10 yr  

Depreciation schedule Linear Linear Linear Linear   Linear Linear  

Amounts in NOK thousands

Operating 
moveable 

assets Land and buildings
Work in 

progress Total

Acquisition cost as at 1 Jan.  108 634  177 551  865  287 050 

Acquired/net change work in progress  458  3 035  -865  2 628 

Disposals  -    -350  -    -350 

Acquisition cost as at 31 Dec.  109 092  180 236  -    289 328 

Accumulated Depreciation/impairment losses  -107 585  -76 637  -    -184 222 

Carrying amount 31 Dec.  1 507  103 599  -    105 106 

Depreciation  230  3 354  -    3 583 

Provisions for decommissioning/restructuring during the year  -    -    -    -   

Economic life 3-10 yr 50 yr - perpetual

Depreciation schedule Linear Linear

Amounts in NOK thousands 2019 2018

Operational leases (inventory, vehicles, etc.)

Annual rental of off-balance sheet item leases (operational leases) 3 146  4 558 

Expiry of leases 2020-2022 2019-2022

TROMS KRAFT AS

Loss on guarantee obligation
In 2016, Troms Kraft AS received a decision from the Norwegian tax 
office stipulating that the authorities denied tax deduction for losses on 
guarantee obligations related to loans made to the subsidiary SNG for a 
total amount of NOK 965 millions. This decision was upheld by the tax 
appeal board in 2018. The company sued the State. The case was heard 
in the Nord-Troms District Court in November 2019. A judgement has 
not been received at the time of writing the annual report. According to a 
Supreme Court judgment dated 19 December 2013, normal assessment 
decisions are considered “best estimate” pursuant to the provisions of the 
Accounting Law. Consequently, deferred tax assets related to this item are 
not included in the company’s accounts. 

TROMS KRAFT AS AND GROUP

Capitalisation of deferred tax asset
The Group has accounted a significant deferred tax advantage. When 
presenting the financial statements, the Group has assessed that future 
taxable earnings are sufficient to utilise the recognised deferred tax advan-
tage. This assessment is based on estimates of future profits in the Group.

NOTE 11 CONTINUATION

 ❚ Fixed assets of own production amount to NOK 58 million of total acquisitions in 2019. This applies mostly to the power grid, which has an average 
economic life of approx. 30 years. Capitalised financing costs amount to NOK 0.5 million in 2019.

 ❚ The depreciation period on intangible assets is based on an assessment of the economic life of each item based on projected earnings. Capitalised 
goodwill relates to retail activities in Norway. The amortisation period of goodwill is 15 years as it relates to the acquisition of brand names which 
are considered to have long-term value.
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NOTE 13 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES

SHARES IN SUBSIDIARIES OWNED BY TROMS KRAFT AS:

Amounts in NOK thousands Registered office Shareholding % Voting share %
Equity upon 
acquisition Carrying amount

 Troms Kraft Nett AS Tromsø 100 100 540 378 627 783

 Troms Kraft Strøm AS Tromsø 100 100 100 000 1 373 484

 Troms Kraft Produksjon AS Tromsø 100 100 1 246 250 492 335

Investment in subsidiaries 1 886 628 2 493 602

CHANGE IN CARRYING AMOUNT PER SUBSIDIARY:

TK Nett TK Strøm TK Produksjon Total

Carried 1 Jan. 589 951 1 314 964 525 321  2 430 236 

Effect of change of principle of pension accounting -108 840 -21 328  -130 167 

Share of profit 125 212 132 744 107 286  365 242 

 Intragroup profit/reversal intragroup profit 4 214  4 214 

Change in estimate IAS 19 against equity 17 245 6 801

Received intra-group contribution 140 561  140 561 

Given intra-group contribution -140 561 -125 747  -266 308 

Group contribution from second tier subsidiaries 0 -70 444 0  -70 444 

Other changes 0 -3 780 0  -3 779 

Carried 31 Dec. 627 783 1 373 484 492 335  2 493 602 

SPECIFICATION OF CARRYING AMOUNT OF SHARE OF PROFIT

2019 2018 

Share of profit 365 242 285 348

Elimination of intragroup profit 4 214 2 806

Other income statement effects

Total 369 456 288 154

NOTE 14 INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES/GENERAL PARTNERSHIPS

Company Reg. office Acquisition date Voting share
               Equity upon 

acquisition
Carrying amount

31 Dec.

Associates in Troms Kraft AS

Krafttele AS Fauske 1999 33,3 % 300 987

Frost Kraftentreprenør AS Bodø 2017 49,0 % 59 565 51 054

Sum 52 041

Associates in the Troms Kraft Group

Finnmarkskonferansen AS Alta 2005/2006 52,00 % 189 231

Total 231

Total Group 52 273

CHANGE CARRYING AMOUNT PER ASSOCIATE/GENERAL PARTNERSHIP:

Amounts in NOK thousands 
Carrying 

amount 1 Jan.
Capital incr./

decr. Acquisitions
Disposals/

Winding-up Dividend Share of profit

Elimination 
of intragroup 

profit
Capital gain/
loss upon sale

Carrying 
amount

Krafttele AS 31 Dec.  -590  632 987

Frost Kraftentreprenør AS  50 639  -    415 51 054

Sum morselskap  51 584  -    -    -    -590  1 047  -    -   52 041

Finnmarkskonferansen AS  231  -   231

Sum TS andre selskap  231  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   231

Sum TK Group  51 813  -    -    -    -590  1 047  -    -   52 272
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NOTE 15 INVESTMENTS IN OTHER COMPANIES

NOTE 16 LONG-TERM RECEIVABLES AND INVESTMENTS

SPECIFICATION OF SHARES:

Amounts in NOK thousands Shareholding % Market value Cost price Carrying amount

Owned by Troms Kraft AS

Nordkraft AS 5,33 % 101 018 101 018

Ymber AS 16,67 % 91 549 91 549

Aksjefond < 10% 417 365 162

Ecohz AS 2,49 % 533 401

NORCE Norwegian Research Centre AS < 1% 2 000 800

NorInnova Technology Transfer AS 3,50 % 3 002 2 370

Norinnova Invest AS 8,30 % 3 620 0

Ullsfjordforbindelsen AS < 10 % 50 0

Lytix Biopharma AS < 1% 3 651 0

Equity reserve KLP 7 198 7 198

Total shares and ownership interests owned by Troms Kraft AS 212 986  203 498 

Owned by other Group companies: Bokført verdi

Ecohz AS 9,95 % 3 020 2 232

Origo Nord AS 3,20 % 300 300

Equity reserve KLP 11 023 11 023

Other investments 0 37

Total shares and ownership interests owned by the subsidiaries 14 343 13 592

Total shares and ownership interests owned by the Group 217 089

TROMS KRAFT AS GROUP

2018 2019 Amounts in NOK thousands 2019 2018

0 0 Net pension funds 0 0

17 372 15 212 Other long-term receivables 15 385 62 199

1 944 142 1 941 501 Intra-group loans 0 0

1 961 514 1 956 713 Total 15 385 62 199

 ❚ The calculation of interest on intra-group loans is based on the interest expenses incurred by Troms Kraft AS. No loans mature later than five years 
after the balance sheet date.  
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NOTE 17 CHANGE IN PRINCIPLE OF PENSION ACCOUNTING

TROMS KRAFT AS GROUP

Submitted 
accounts

Effect of the change in 
principle Restated 2018

Submitted 
accounts

Effect of the change in 
principle Restated 2018

 25 073  -4 224  20 849 Payroll expenses  259 285  -5 170  254 115 

 287 417  738  288 154 Share of profit in subsidiaries

 15 820  -929  14 891 Tax expense  -135 060  -1 137  -136 197 

 190 893  4 032  194 926 Profit for the year  190 036  4 032  194 068 

TROMS KRAFT AS GROUP

Submitted 
accounts

Effect of the change in 
principle Restated 2018

Submitted 
accounts

Effect of the change in 
principle Restated 2018

 162 942  33 945  196 887 Deferred tax assets  97 444  70 659  168 102 

 2 430 236  -130 167  2 300 069 Investments in subsidiaries

 1 998 075  -36 561  1 961 514 Long-term receivables and investments  152 085  -89 886  62 199 

 28 996  117 734  146 730 Pension obligations  37 334  231 291  268 624 

 741 906  -250 518  491 388 Other equity  594 366  -250 518  343 848 

AMENDED INCOME STATEMENT 2018:

AMENDED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2018:

The Group has changed the principle of accounting of pension obligations. Effective from 1 January 2019, the company has chosen to apply Inter-
national Accounting Standard (IAS) 19 Employee Benefits and changed the method of accounting of pension obligations and costs. The company 
has previously utilised the corridor method for accounting of unamortised variances in accounting estimates. The change of principle means that all 
variances in accounting estimates are recognised directly against other equity.

In the financial statements 2019, the accumulated variances in accounting estimates as at 1 January 2018 are recognised against other equity. The 
comparative figures in the income statement and balance sheet are amended as follows:

NOTE 18 LIQUID ASSETS

TROMS KRAFT AS GROUP

2018 2019 Amounts in NOK thousands 2019 2018

1 633 29 Cash at bank and cash equivalent 321 713 557 228

 ❚ The bank accounts in the wholly owned subsidiaries in the Norwegian part of the Troms Kraft Group are tied in a corporate account structure that 
serves as a cash pooling arrangement. As at 31 December 2019, Troms Kraft AS had a net drawn amount of NOK 418 million, which is included 
under Other short-term liabilities (see note 23). As at 31 December 2018, the parent company had a net drawn amount of NOK 487 million.

 ❚ Troms Kraft AS has an approved bank overdraft limit of NOK 500 million, which is linked to the top account in the corporate account system. The 
overdraft was unused as of 31 December 2019. Subsidiaries included in the cash pooling arrangement provide unconditional guarantees and 
have a joint liability.

 ❚ Troms Kraft AS provides a bank guarantee of NOK 13.5 million as a security for withholding tax burden in the Group. Furthermore, NOK 1.9 
million of bank deposits are restricted assets.
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NOTE 19 EQUITY

NOTE 20 SHAREHOLDERS INFORMATION

Amounts in NOK thousands Share capital Share premium reserve Other equity Total

Equity as at 31 Dec. 2017 500 000 73 954 553 326 1 127 280

Effect of change in principle pension IAS 19 -246 675 -246 675

Equity as at 1 Jan. 2018 500 000 73 954 306 651 880 606

Net income for the year 194 926 194 926

Change in estimate IAS 19 against equity -7 875 -7 875

Translation difference -5 495 -5 495

Other changes against equity 3 182 3 182

Equity as at. 31 Dec. 2018 500 000 73 954 491 389 1 065 343

Net income for the year 320 080 320 080

Change in estimate IAS 19 against equity 14 723 14 723

Change in estimate IAS 19 against subsidiaries equity 24 046 24 046

Translation difference -3 780 -3 780

Provision for dividends -50 000 -50 000

Equity as at 31 Dec. 2019 500 000 73 954 796 459 1 370 414

Amounts in NOK thousands Share capital Share premium reserve Other equity Total

Equity as at 31 Dec. 2017 500 000 73 954 406 705 980 660

Effect of change in principle pension IAS 19 -246 675 -246 675

Equity as at 1 Jan. 2018 500 000 73 954 160 030 733 984

Net income for the year 194 068 194 068

Change in estimate IAS 19 against equity -7 875 -7 875

Translation difference -5 495 -5 495

Other changes against equity 3 119 3 119

Equity as at 31 Dec. 2018 500 000 73 954 343 849 917 803

Net income for the year 319 223 319 223

Change in estimate IAS 19 against equity 38 770 38 770

Translation difference -3 780 -3 780

Provision for dividends -50 000 -50 000

Other changes against equity -5 -5

Equity as at 31 Dec. 2019 500 000 73 954 648 057 1 222 011

TROMS KRAFT AS 

GROUP

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019, THE COMPANY TROMS KRAFT AS HAS THE FOLLOWING SHAREHOLDERS:

No. shares Amount Share capital Shareholding Voting share

 Tromsø kommune 200 000 1 000 200 000 000 40 % 40 %

 Troms Holding AS 300 000 1 000 300 000 000 60 % 60 %

 Total 500 000 500 000 000 100 % 100 %



29

NOTE 21 LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

NOTE 22 OTHER PROVISIONS FOR OBLIGATIONS

TROMS KRAFT AS GROUP

2018 2019 Amounts in NOK thousands 2019 2018

110 085 57 332 Subordinated loans 57 332  110 085 

3 200 000 3 200 000 Bank loans  3 200 000  3 200 000 

 -    -   Other long-term liabilities  11 609  11 565 

3 310 085 3 257 332 Total  3 268 941  3 321 650 

TROMS KRAFT AS GROUP

2018 2019 Amounts in NOK thousands 2019 2018

4 142 1 501 Deferred revenue recognition of advance payments of supplies with long maturity 3 041 7 739

0 0 Other provisions for liabilities 0 1 666

4 142 1 501 Total 3 041 9 405

THE FOLLOWING LIABILITIES ARE INCLUDED IN THIS ITEM:

SUBORDINATED LOANS

 ❚ Subordinated loans from Troms County Council and Tromsø municipality account for NOK 34.4 million and NOK 22.9 million respectively.

BANK LOANS

 ❚ In 2019, Troms Kraft AS extended its long-term bank loan until 20 June 2022 with an option to extend for a further year. As at 31 December 2019, 
Troms Kraft AS fulfils all the financial terms of the loan agreement.

 ❚ The Group’s financing policy is that all long-term external borrowing of significance is done by Troms Kraft AS. The parent company makes loans 
to the   subsidiaries as required.

 ❚ Interest rate risk occurs in the short- and medium-term due to the floating interest rate (3M Nibor) on the loan. Troms Kraft AS utilises interest rate 
swaps to manage interest rate risk.

 ❚ Troms Kraft AS’ loan agreements include a negative pledge clause, as well as provisions concerning cross default.

INTEREST RATE SWAPS 

 ❚  Troms Kraft AS has entered into interest rate swaps to manage the interest risk in the Group. Interest rate swap are entered into for hedging purposes, 
whereby Troms Kraft AS pays a fixed rate of interest and receives a floating rate. The floating rate is adjusted every third month. Floating interest 
rates also apply for interest-bearing debt.

SPECIFICATION OF INTEREST RATE SWAPS FOR TROMS KRAFT AS, AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019:

Lender Nominal amount Matures

Interest rate swap  250 000 20.10.2020

Interest rate swap  250 000 22.10.2020

Interest rate swap  300 000 24.05.2021

Interest rate swap  200 000 15.06.2021

Total  1 000 000 

 ❚ In addition Troms Kraft AS has entered into two forward-start interest rate swaps of NOK 250 million, both starting on 22 October and maturing 
on 22 October 2025 and 23 April 2029 respectively.

 ❚ As at 31 December 2019 the combined market value of swaps was negative by NOK 30.6 million.

GROUP

 ❚ Contingent liabilities are recognised in the balance sheet if probability 
of settlement obligations is considered more likely than not. Annual 
compensation to landowners is extremely limited and is expensed as 
incurred. Obligations to supply concession power are not included 
in the balance sheet (the sales price for concession power is higher 
than the production cost).

Legal action SNG
 ❚ In 2013, Troms Kraft AS filed a claim for damages against former 
auditor Grant Thornton Sweden AB (GT) in Kraft & Kultur AB for 
defective audits. The case was heard in the Stockholm District Court 
(2016) and Svea Court of Appeal (2018). Troms Kraft AS lost both 
court cases and then appealed to the Supreme Court of Sweden. 

Notification was received in May 2019 that the Supreme Court had 
not granted leave to hear the case. The costs imposed were paid in 
late May 2019.

 ❚ In the judgment of the Svea Court of Appeal in 2018, GT was ordered 
to pay the costs of the board members in Kraft & Kultur AB who sought 
recourse. In August 2019, GT applied to the District Court to bring legal 
action against Switch Nordic Green (SNG) concerning these costs and 
the associated costs of GT’s legal action against the former board of 
Kraft & Kultur AB. This claim amounts to SEK 83 million plus interest. 
SNG disputes the claim. As the probability that GT will win the case is 
considered low, provisions have not been made for this claim.
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NOTE 23 OTHER SHORT-TERM LIABILITIES

NOTE 24 SHORT-TERM RECEIVABLES

NOTE 25 GUARANTEE OBLIGATIONS

NOTE 26 INTRA-GROUP BALANCES

TROMS KRAFT AS GROUP

2018 2019 Amounts in NOK thousands 2019 2018

 -    -   Provision for hedging portfolio  -    -   

 59 707  953 Provision for accrued costs  224 935  371 842 

 -    -   Accrual power contracts  248 010  337 991 

 486 999  417 646 Net drawing Group revolving credit  -    -   

 1 451  141 572 Short-term liabilities to Group companies  -    -   

548 157  560 171 Total  472 945 709 833

TROMS KRAFT AS GROUP

2018 2019 Amounts in NOK thousands 2019 2018

0 0 Other receivables 75 127 66 508

0 316 Accrued income/prepaid expenses 512 479 587 806

0 316 Total 587 606 654 313

As a security for certain obligations, the Group purchases bank guar-
antees. As at 31 December, these guarantees amounted to (Amounts in 
NOK thousands): 

Guarantee recipient Purpose Bank guarantee

Nord Pool AS Physical trading of electricity  105 296 

eSett Oy Trading of regulated electricity  30 000 

Tromsø Kommune Guarantee for withholding tax  13 500 

Others Various contracts  -   

Total bank guarantees  148 796 

Guarantee provided 
to

Guarantee provided on 
behalf of Purpose Amount

Bank Ishavskraft AS
Hedging maximum 
exposure amount  420 000 

Bank Ishavskraft AS Forward invoicing  80 000 

Supplier Switch Nordic Green AB Electricity trading  641 147 

Total guarantees  1 141 147 

In addition, Troms Kraft AS provided the following guarantees 
(Amounts in NOK thousands):

 ❚ As at 31 December 2019, cash collateral to Nasdaq Clearing amounts to NOK 382.6 million. Cash collateral and drawn guarantees  are recog-
nised in the balance sheet under short-term financial investments. The requirement for security from Nasdaq Clearing relates to electricity trading 
derivatives including EPAD (Electricity Price Area Differentials), electricity certificates and the Default Fund.

 ❚ As a security for the Group’s loan facility of NOK 3,200 million, a negative pledge clause has been included.

 ❚ As a security for the hedging maximum exposure amount in the bank, property reg. no. 15 title no. 1037 in Tromsø municipality is pledged at a 
specified value of NOK 65 million.

Amounts in NOK thousands 2019 2018

Long-term receivables from companies in the Group* 1 941 501 1 944 142

Account receivables from companies in the Group 8 683 8 536

Receivables group contribution 431 734 0

Other short-term receivables from companies in the Group 0 247 038

Total Group receivables (short-term) 440 417 255 573

Account payables to companies in the Group 791 1 368

Other short-term liabilities to companies in the Group 219 83

Total Group liabilities (short-term) 1 010 1 451

TROMS KRAFT AS

* Included under Long-term receivables and investments in the balance sheet
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NOTE 27 RELATED PARTIES

The owners of Troms Kraft AS are Tromsø municipality and Troms Holding AS, cf. Note 20. All subsidiaries and associates as specified in notes 13 
and 14 shall be considered as related parties of the Troms Kraft Group. The same applies to the company’s Board of Directors and CEO. Detailed 
information about the remuneration to these people is presented in note 6. Intra-group balances are covered in note 26.

The company has made various transactions with related parties. All such transactions are made as part of the ordinary activities and at arm’s length 
conditions. This note specifies significant transactions.

THE PARENT COMPANY’S TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

THE GROUP’S TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

Amounts in NOK thousands 2019 2018

Sale of services

To subsidiaries/second tier subsidiaries 23 833 22 830

To associates 0 0

Total sale of services 23 833 22 830

Purchase of services

From subsidiaries 2 132 1 615

Total purchase of services 2 132 1 615

Interest income

Interest income from subsidiaries/second tier subsidiaries 72 883 34 428

Total interest income 72 883 34 428

Amounts in NOK thousands 2019 2018

Sale of services and electricity

To associates  135  231 

To other related parties  -    -   

Total sale of services  135  231 

Purchase of goods, services and electricity

From associates  79 806  113 162 

Total purchase of goods and services  79 806  113 162 

The statement below includes transactions between consolidated businesses that have not been detailed, cf. Section 
7-30 b. of the Accounting Act.

TROMS KRAFT AS

GROUP
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AUDITOR’S REPORT

KPMG AS
Stakkevollvegen 41 
Postboks 6262 
9292 Tromsø

Telephone +47 04063
Fax +47 77 64 30 10
Internet www.kpmg.no
Enterprise 935 174 627 MVA

 
 
 
To the General Meeting of Troms Kraft AS

Independent auditor’s report
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Troms Kraft AS showing a profit of NOK 320 080 000 in 
the financial statements of the parent company and profit of NOK 319 223 000 in the financial 
statements of the group. The financial statements comprise:

• The financial statements of the parent company Troms Kraft AS (the Company), which 
comprise the balance sheet as at 31 December 2019, the income statement and cash flow 
statement for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary 
of significant accounting policies, and

• The consolidated financial statements of Troms Kraft AS and its subsidiaries (the Group), 
which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 December 2019, the income statement and cash 
flow statement for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a 
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion:

• The financial statements are prepared in accordance with the law and regulations.

• The accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the 
Company as at 31 December 2019, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the 
year then ended in accordance with the Norwegian Accounting Act and accounting standards 
and practices generally accepted in Norway.

• The accompanying consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial 
position of the Group as at 31 December 2019, and its financial performance and its cash 
flows for the year then ended in accordance with the Norwegian Accounting Act and 
accounting standards and practices generally accepted in Norway.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with laws, regulations, and auditing standards and practices 
generally accepted in Norway, including International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the 
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company and the 
Group as required by laws and regulations, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Other information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises information in 
the annual report, except the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express 
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the 
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially 
misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this 
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Board of Directors and the Managing Director for the Financial Statements

The Board of Directors and the Managing Director (Management) are responsible for the preparation 
in accordance with law and regulations, including fair presentation of the financial statements in 
accordance with the Norwegian Accounting Act and accounting standards and practices generally 
accepted in Norway, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable 
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 
or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s and 
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern. The financial statements use the going concern basis of accounting insofar as it is not likely 
that the enterprise will cease operations.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that 
an audit conducted in accordance with laws, regulations, and auditing standards and practices 
generally accepted in Norway, including ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it 
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on 
the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with laws, regulations, and auditing standards and practices 
generally accepted in Norway, including ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

• identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 
to fraud or error. We design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The 
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's or the Group's internal control.

• evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

• conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company and the 
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Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty 
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the 
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. 
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company and the Group to cease to 
continue as a going concern.

• evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including 
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions 
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

• obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities 
or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial 
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group 
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control 
that we identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Opinion on the Board of Directors’ report

Based on our audit of the financial statements as described above, it is our opinion that the 
information presented in the Board of Directors’ report concerning the financial statements and the 
going concern assumption is consistent with the financial statements and complies with the law and 
regulations.

Opinion on Registration and Documentation

Based on our audit of the financial statements as described above, and control procedures we have 
considered necessary in accordance with the International Standard on Assurance Engagements 
(ISAE) 3000, Assurance Engagements Other than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial 
Information, it is our opinion that management has fulfilled its duty to produce a proper and clearly set 
out registration and documentation of the Company’s accounting information in accordance with the 
law and bookkeeping standards and practices generally accepted in Norway.

Tromsø, 30 March 2020
KPMG AS

Stig-Tore Richardsen
State Authorised Public Accountant

Note: This translation from Norwegian has been prepared for information purposes only.
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OUR COMPANIES
troms kraft as is the parent company of the Troms 
Kraft Group. The role of the company is corporate 
governance and monitoring of its subsidiaries as well 
as financing and business development of the Group’s 
businesses. 

troms kraft nett as is one of the country’s largest dis-
tribution companies, with a power grid capital (NVE 
capital) of NOK 2.6 billion. The company develops, 
monitors and maintains a power grid consisting of 
4,481 grid stations, 31 transformer stations and 
10,500 km of power lines in our 12 concession 
municipalities in Troms Country. The company has 
approx. 78,500 distribution customers.

Troms Kraft Nett AS is a wholly owned subsidiary of 
Troms Kraft AS.

troms kraft produksjon as generates renewable 
energy at 10 hydroelectric power plants and one 
wind farm. In 2019, the company generated a total 
of 1,038 GWh of renewable energy, which equates 
to the electricity consumption of 51,900 households.

Troms Kraft Produksjon AS is a wholly owned subsidi-
ary of Troms Kraft AS.

troms kraft strøm as is the parent company of Ishavsk-
raft AS and Switch Nordic Green AB. 

The company has no employees and is a wholly 
owned subsidiary of Troms Kraft AS.

ishavskraft as is one of Norway’s largest electricity 
suppliers. With 60 employees based in Alta, Tromsø 
and Oslo, 120,000 customers throughout Norway 
and an annual turnover of NOK 3 billion, the compa-
ny is experiencing strong growth and development. 
In 2019, the company supplied 4,860 GWh of 
electricity to its customers. Ishavskraft has an inevitable 
environmental commitment and is investing heavily in 
future-oriented solutions to the global environmental 
and climate challenges.

Ishavskraft is a wholly owned subsidiary of Troms Kraft 
Strøm AS.

switch nordic green ab  is the Group’s electricity retail 
company in Sweden and Finland. In 2019, the 
company supplied approx. 3,600 GWh of electricity 
to its 140,000 customers and had a turnover of SEK 
1.7 billion. The company has a strong position in its 
markets.

Switch Nordic Green AB is a wholly owned subsidi-
ary of Troms Kraft Strøm AS. The company has its 
head office is in Stockholm and branch office in Vasa 
in Finland.
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OSTEREN

SKARSFJORDEN

LYNGSEIDET

FAKKEN

SJØVEGAN DIVIDALEN

SKIBOTN

LAVKA

ROTTENVIKTROMSØ

HANSNES

GUOLAS

BARDUFOSS

TVERRELVA STORSTEINNES

BERGSBOTN

SILSAND

LYSBOTN

HYDROELECTRIC POWER PLANTS

LOCATIONS

WIND FARM

BERGSBOTN 
 ❚ Constructed in1986 
 ❚ Francis turbine
 ❚ Power generation: 29 GWh
 ❚ Power generation in the year: 23 GWh 
 ❚ Drop height: 354 m. 
 ❚ Reservoir capacity: 21.59 GWh
 ❚ Installed capacity: 7,9 MW

DIVIDALEN 
 ❚ Constructed in 1972 
 ❚ Francis turbine
 ❚ Power generation: 137 GWh
 ❚ Power generation in the year: 113 GWh 
 ❚ Drop height: 279 m. 
 ❚ Reservoir capacity: 89.56 GWh
 ❚ Installed capacity: 26 MW

FAKKEN WIND FARM 
 ❚ Constructed in 2012 
 ❚ Power generation: 130 GWh 
 ❚ Power generation in the year: 133 GWh
 ❚ Each tower: 80 m high,  

blade radius: 45 m
 ❚ Installed capacity: 18 × 3 MW

GUOLÁS 
 ❚ Constructed in 1971 
 ❚ 2 Pelton turbineer à 40 MW
 ❚ Power generation: 320 GWh 
 ❚ Power generation in the year: 297 GWh
 ❚ Drop height: 713 m. 
 ❚ Reservoir capacity: 224.78 GWh 
 ❚ Installed capacity: 2 × 40 MW

LAVKA
 ❚ Constructed in 1982 
 ❚ Francis turbine 
 ❚ Power generation: 25 GWh
 ❚ Power generation in the year: 17 GWh 
 ❚ Drop height: 127 m. 
 ❚ Reservoir capacity: 20.3 GWh
 ❚ Installed capacity: 8,5 MW

LYSBOTN 
 ❚ Constructed in 1991 
 ❚ Francis turbine
 ❚ Power generation: 28 GWh
 ❚ Power generation in the year: 30 GWh 
 ❚ Drop height: 106 m. 
 ❚ Reservoir capacity: 21.59 GWh
 ❚ Installed capacity: 5,4 MW

OSTEREN 
 ❚ Constructed in 1984 
 ❚ Francis turbine
 ❚ Power generation: 14 GWh
 ❚ Power generation in the year: 15 GWh 
 ❚ Drop height: 137 m. 
 ❚ Reservoir capacity: 1.73 GWh 
 ❚ Installed capacity: 2,4 MW

ROTTENVIK 
 ❚ Constructed in 2010 (replaced plant from 1952)
 ❚ Pelton turbine
 ❚ Power generation: 19 GWh
 ❚ Power generation in the year: 21 GWh 
 ❚ Drop height: 460 m. 
 ❚ Reservoir capacity: 4.0 GWh
 ❚ Installed capacity: 5 MW

SKARSFJORD 
 ❚ Constructed in 1922 (upgraded 1994) 
 ❚ Francis turbine
 ❚ Power generation: 18 GWh
 ❚ Power generation in the year: 20 GWh 
 ❚ Drop height: 152 m. 
 ❚ Reservoir capacity: 9.8 GWh
 ❚ Installed capacity: 4 MW

SKIBOTN
 ❚ Constructed in 1980 
 ❚ Francis turbine
 ❚ Power generation: 382 GWh
 ❚ Power generation in the year: 360 GWh
 ❚ Drop height: 440 m. 
 ❚ Reservoir capacity: 220.4 GWh
 ❚ Installed capacity: 72 MW

TVERRELVA 
 ❚ Constructed in 1985 
 ❚ Pelton turbine
 ❚ Power generation: 2 GWh
 ❚ Power generation in the year: 2 GWh 
 ❚ Drop height: 370 m. 
 ❚ Reservoir capacity: 1,5 GWh
 ❚ Installed capacity: 0,3 MW
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